MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE ALEXANDRA PALACE AND PARK BOARD HELD ON TUESDAY, 16TH JULY, 2019, 7.30 - 9.50 pm

PRESENT:

Councillors: Anne Stennett (Chair), Eldridge Culverwell (Vice-Chair), Dana Carlin, Nick da Costa, Bob Hare and Sarah Williams

Non-voting Members: Jason Beazley, Duncan Neill and Val Paley

1. FILMING AT MEETINGS

Noted.

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were received from Nigel Willmott, and apologies for lateness from Cllr Williams.

3. URGENT BUSINESS

None.

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS

The Chair declared a conflict of interest at item 19 of the agenda and stated that she would withdraw from the meeting during this item.

5. QUESTIONS, DEPUTATIONS OR PETITIONS

A deputation had been received from Mr Clive Carter in relation to a previous UN World Heritage Proposal to the Trust.

Mr Carter was invited by the Chair to put forward his deputation to the Board. Mr Carter introduced the Board to the deputation as set out. Mr Carter noted that the World Heritage Proposal was adopted by the Board 7 years ago, and highlighted that the purpose of his deputation was two-fold:

- 1. It was part of the Boards adoptive policy.
- 2. To request that the Board not take any action that could prejudice the goal to achieve World Heritage site status for the South-East Wing of Alexandra Palace due to its historical significance.

Mr Carter advised that it would be a cost-free undertaking and noted that the proposal came with support as detailed at page 6 of the Proposal to the Board. He considered that the support of the Proposal suggested that the Proposal was worth pursuing.



In response to questions raised by Members, the following points were noted:

- Mr Carter referred to the Baird studio in relation to the engineering significance of the South-East wing.
- In terms of asbestos in the studio, Louise Stewart clarified that asbestos in those areas had been removed or encapsulated, and from an asbestos perspective, it was safe to enter the studio.
- Mr Carter indicated that no organisations or partners had been identified to help develop the project, however he was sure that that the project would be picked up easily and many companies would be willing to help due to immense prestige of the location. He felt that there would be global interest and people would visit the Palace due to its architecture and its irreplaceable history.
- Mr Carter clarified that the proposal was not urgent, and that his main request
 was for the Board to not take any action that could jeopardise a future seeking of
 World Heritage status for the Studio.

The Chair thanked Mr Carter for his deputation.

Cllr Sarah Williams entered the meeting at 19:47.

6. MINUTES

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 30 April 2019 be approved as a correct record.

7. APPOINTMENTS TO COMMITTEES

The Chair referred to the report as set out.

Cllr da Costa noted that in relation to section 1.2 of agenda item 7, a non-eligible member, a member of the Statutory Advisory Committee, was elected Chair of Alexandra Park and Palace Consultative Committee, and therefore, a new Chair would need to be elected at the next meeting of the Consultative Committee.

On another note, Mr Jason Beazley, from the Three Avenues Residents Association, mentioned that he was under the impression that the Consultative Committee should have a representative from a Residents Association, and queried whether he would be eligible as he was not on the Consultative Committee. Following discussion between Mr Beazley and the Clerk, it was agreed that there would be a separate discussion on this matter. (Action: Mr Jason Beazley & Clerk).

RESOLVED that

- i. The membership of the Alexandra Park and Palace Advisory Committee, as set out in appendix 1 of the report, be noted;
- ii. The membership of the Alexandra Park and Palace Consultative Committee, as set out in appendix 1 of the report, be noted, subject to renomination of a Chair:
- iii. Cllrs Stennett, Williams, Hare and Carlin be appointed as members of FRRAC in 2019/20 as Trustee Board Members;

- iv. Cllr Williams be appointed as FRRAC Chair;
- v. Clirs Stennett, da Costa, Carlin and Culverwell be appointed as APTL company directors:
- vi. Cllr Stennett be appointed as APTL Chair;
- vii. Cllrs Stennett, Hare and Carlin be appointed as members of the Programme Board; and
- viii. Cllr Williams be appointed as Lead Safeguarding trustee and Whistleblowing Lead Trustee.

8. ANNUAL REVIEW OF TRUSTEES' REGISTER OF INTERESTS

The Board agreed to send any amendments and updates to the register of interests, listed at Appendix 1 of the report, to Natalie Layton via email. (Action: Board Members).

Ms Layton agreed to recirculate the amended Register of Interests to Board members. (Action: Charity Secretary).

9. REPORT FROM THE CHAIR OF THE FINANCE, RISK, RESOURCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE (FRRAC)

RESOLVED that

- i. The feedback from the June FRRAC meeting be noted; and
- ii. The FRRAC recommendation to amend the SIR policy to delegate responsibility for deciding when to report a serious incident to the Charity Commission to the Chair or Vice Chair be approved.

10. TRUST FINANCIAL RESULTS

Dorota Dominiczak, Director of Finance and Resources – Alexandra Palace, introduced the report as set out. She highlighted that a fundraising target of £400,000 had been set for the year; however, since the report had been written, £150,000 had been secured over a three-year period, from the Matchroom Sport Charitable Foundation. This funding was to be used for a creative project relating to the Wild in the Park Programme. A further update would be provided once the project had commenced. (Action: Chief Executive Officer)

Ms Dominiczak clarified that the forecast was updated monthly based on the April closing figures and had been considered by FRRAC the previous month. The Director of Finance agreed to include dates of the forecasts in future. (Action: Director of Finance and Resources).

RESOLVED that the financial performance of the Trust and the pressure on the 2019/20 Trust budget be noted.

11. CEO'S REPORT

Louise Stewart, Chief Executive Officer, introduced the report as set out, which provided an update on current issues and projects at Alexandra Park and Palace, and

additional information on the events programme and range of activities of the Charitable Trust.

The following arose from the discussion of the report:

- In response to a question around feedback on the Heritage Significance Appraisal, Ms Stewart mentioned that the Trust was not expecting a huge number of responses, perhaps up to 15 but those responses were likely to be substantial
- In response to concerns in relation to low attendance at the Windrush event, Ms Stewart explained that whilst promotion for the event was carried out by a partner agency, which was usual practice for events where the Palace and especially when it was targeted as a specific community of interest. In addition, there were a number of Windrush events held around the borough on the same day, and so there would have been a division of audience.
- Events were currently publicised on the Alexandra Palace website, and some on the 'What's On?' boards in the park. In terms of advertising on the building, there were conservation constraints on how the building could be used.

RESOLVED that the CEO's report be noted.

12. COMPLAINTS ANNUAL REPORT

Louise Stewart, Chief Executive Officer, introduced the report as set out. Complaints had not been properly recorded in the past; therefore, it was not possible to ascertain whether there had been an increase or decrease in the number of complaints. It was noted that 91 complaints was phenomenally low considering that there were four million visits to the Palace annually. Ms Stewart pointed out that there had been a temporary glitch whereby the telephone number for complaints during events had not been answered for a short time, and it was possible that some complaints were not reported/recorded.

RESOLVED that the Complaints Annual Report be noted.

13. ANY OTHER UNRESTRICTED BUSINESS THE CHAIR CONSIDERS TO BE URGENT

None.

14. FUTURE MEETINGS

NOTED as: 15 October 2019 14 January 2020 10 March 2020

The Chair requested that the date of the October meeting be moved as she was unable to attend on the scheduled date.

The meeting adjourned and re-commenced at 20:36pm.

15. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC AND PRESS

RESOLVED that the press and public be excluded from the meeting during the consideration of items 16-23 as they contained exempt information as defined in Section 100a of the Local Government Act 1972; Para 1 – information relating to any individual, Para 2 – Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual, Para 3 - information relating to the business or financial affairs of any particular person (including the authority holding that information), and Para 5 - Information in respect of which a claim to legal professional privilege could be maintained in legal proceedings.

16. MINUTES

RESOLVED that the exempt minutes of the meeting held on 30 April 2019 be approved as a correct record.

17. EXEMPT - APPOINTMENTS

The recommendations in the report were approved.

18. EXEMPT - GOVERNANCE UPDATE

The recommendations in the report were approved.

19. EXEMPT - CCTV REQUEST

The recommendations in the report were approved.

20. EXEMPT - DRAFT TRUSTEES ANNUAL REPORT AND ACCOUNTS

The recommendations in the report were approved.

21. EXEMPT - APTL CHAIR'S REPORT

The recommendations in the report were approved.

22. EXEMPT - TRUST FINANCIAL RESULTS

The recommendations in the report were approved.

23. ANY OTHER EXEMPT BUSINESS THE CHAIR CONSIDERS TO BE URGENT

CHAIR: Councillor Anne Stennett
Signed by Chair
Date

